
AGENDA 

Board Affairs Committee 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 

1:30-3:00pm MST 
West Center Room 2 / Zoom 

GVR’s Mission Statement: “To provide excellent facilities and services that create 
opportunities for recreation, social activities, and leisure education to enhance the quality 
of our members’ lives.” 

Committee: Donna Coon (Chair), Carol Crothers, Joyce Finkelstein, Jerry Humphrey, 
Nellie Johnson, Ed Knop, Chuck Soukup, Beverly Tobiason, Jodie Walker, Tony Zabicki, 
Kathi Bachelor (ex-officio), Scott Somers (CEO), Nanci Moyo (Administrative 
Supervisor/Liaison) 

Agenda Topic 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Approve Meeting Minutes: February 14, 2023

3. Chair Comments

4. Business
a. Adopt FAC Recommended Procurement and Spending Authority Policy

– CPM Part 5 – Fiscal/Accounting, Section 4 (all new)
b. Adopted Board Credo

- Where should this be placed in our governing documents?
c. Club Request: Italian Club
d. Review draft Year-End BAC report for the BOD

5. Member Comments

6. Adjournment

Next Meeting: Tuesday, May 9, 2023, West Center, Room 2/Zoom, 1:30-3:00pm 





MINUTES 
Board Affairs Committee 

Tuesday, February 14, 2023, 1:30pm 
WC Room 2 / Zoom 

Committee: Donna Coon (Chair), Carol Crothers, Joyce Finkelstein, Jerry Humphrey, 
Nellie Johnson, Ed Knop, Chuck Soukup, Beverly Tobiason, Jodie Walker, Tony Zabicki, 
Kathi Bachelor (ex-officio), Scott Somers (CEO), Nanci Moyo (Liaison/Administrative 
Supervisor) 

Absent: Beverly Tobiason, Jodie Walker 

Visitors: 2 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum
Chair Coon called the meeting to order at 1:28pm MST. Roll call by Nanci
Moyo. Quorum established.

2. Approve Meeting Minutes: January 10, 2023
MOTION: Johnson moved / Humphrey seconded to approve January
10, 2023, Meeting Minutes as presented.
Passed: 5 yes / 2 abstained (Finkelstein, Soukup)

3. Chair Comments:
• Thanked Board Affairs Committee (BAC) members for coming to the

January 18, Board Work Session, for the discussion on the Corporate
Policy Manual (CPM) Part 3 Committees.

• Part 3: Committees – Section 1.G was not resolved and was returned to
BAC for further discussion.

• On January 19 a small group of the BAC met to discuss Part 3 and how
to present to the Board at the January 25, Regular Meeting.

• At the January 25, Regular Meeting of the Board Part 3 Committees and
the proposed Bylaws were pulled from the Agenda by a vote of the
Board. This stopped the proposed Bylaws from going to the 2023 Ballot
for the membership to vote on.

4. Business
a. Review and Develop a Permanent Solution vs. Annual Fee Waiver for Part 6,

Section 2: 6.2.2.K.5
MOTION: Johnson moved, Finkelstein seconded to recommend to the
Board of Directors to approve this change to Part 6, Section 2:
6.2.2.K.3 – “Non-members will pay an event fee of no more than one
half of the daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work
with the Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.” Eliminate
6.2.2.K.5.
Passed: unanimous

Agenda Topic #2

1



b. Review Staff Recommendation for Tracking CPM Changes
MOTION: Coon moved, Crothers seconded to approve the staff
recommendation for tracking CPM changes on a separate document
from the CPM beginning January 1, 2022.
Passed: unanimous

c. Review CPM Part 7
MOTION: Johnson moved, Zabicki seconded to recommend to the
Board of Directors to approve Part 7 as presented in the BAC
Meeting Book as the clean copy.
Passed: unanimous

d. Review CPM Part 3
MOTION: Johnson moved, Finkelstein seconded to recommend to the
Board modified language to Part 3 Committees, 3.1.1.G: “Committee
members shall be GVR members in good standing and must submit
an application for a Committee appointment. The President,
Chairperson, and CEO will review applications. After review of the
applications the Chairperson will select Committee members and
inform the Board of the appointments at the April meeting. Staff, as
liaisons to the Committees, will be selected by the CEO. Vacancies on
the Committee during the year may be filled by the Chairperson after
consulting with the President.
Passed: unanimous

MOTION: Johnson moved, Crothers seconded to recommend to the
Board modified language to Part 3 Committees, 3.1.1.D: “Members
are encouraged to apply for committee positions and if possible,
serve for multiple years. It is recommended that chairs seek to have
at least 1/3 new members each year and limit committee
participation to no more than six (6) consecutive years.”
Passed: unanimous

MOTION: Johnson moved, Finkelstein seconded to recommend to the
Board to approve Section 1 only of Part 3 Committees as amended at
the February 14, 2023, BAC meeting, for the next Regular Board
meeting.
Passed: unanimous

5. New Business:
Carol Crothers shared with the BAC about a proposal for a motion at the
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors in February regarding policy
for GVR to follow an internal financial manual, and having high-level
process approach for major capital projects with a project plan reviewed
monthly.

General discussion held regarding this proposed motion from the BAC
was to have it come before the BAC before it goes to the Board of
Directors or to bring it before the Board of Directors for them to

2



charge/assign the BAC with developing a policy. 

6. Member Comments: 0

7. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 2:54pm, MST.

Next Meeting: Tuesday, March 14, 2023, West Center, Room 2/Zoom, 1:30 –
3:30pm

3





Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board Affairs Committee 
Procurement and Spending Authority Policy 

Prepared By: Donna Coon, BAC Chair Meeting Date: March 14, 2023 
         and Carol Crothers, FAC Chair 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, FAC Chair 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) recommends a Procurement and Spending Authority Policy for 
CPM Part 5 Fiscal/Accounting, as a new section called Section 4. FAC asks the BAC to review 
and approve a recommendation to the Board of Directors to add Section 4 to Part 5 of the 
CPM. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members 

Background Justification: 
Since the first meeting of FAC last April we have talked about the need for updated, clearer 
financial policies.  At our November FAC meeting, a subcommittee was formed to work with 
the CFO to create a clear procurement policy that was compatible with the staff financial 
operations manual.  The FAC subcommittee, CEO and CFO crafted the first draft of the 
attached document.  

The draft was brought before the full FAC at our February meeting and several questions and 
recommendations were discussed.  CEO Somers incorporated the suggestions, reviewed 
them with our attorneys and sent the revised document back to the FAC.  By unanimous 
consent the FAC agreed to this updated draft so this could be sent on to BAC for their 
consideration. The FAC recommends BAC review and approve so it can be voted on by the 
Board at the March meeting. 

Basically, the policy calls for a formal RFP for any new projects over $100K and multiple bids 
for projects between $5K and $100K.  All projects funded by Initiatives or MR&R-B (the pools 
and spas fund) must be approved by the Board.  MR&R projects, if they are part of the MR&R 
annual plan, do not need Board approval unless the cost is above 110% of the plan item. 

Committee Options: 
1. Approve changes as recommended
2. Recommend changes
3. Defer decision until later

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 

Agenda Topic 4.a.

4



Recommended Motion: 
Move that BAC approve the attached changes and recommend that the Board vote to 
incorporate them into the CPM. 

Attachments: 
1) Draft Procurement Policy Clean
2) Draft Procurement Policy Redline

5



PROPOSED NEW SECTION 4 to PART 5: FISCAL/ACCOUNTING 

SECTION 4 – PROCUREMENT POLICY (Adopted _______________) 

5.4.1. Overview

The purpose of this policy is to set out the requirements and guidelines 
for procuring goods and services for GVR on behalf of the Corporation 
to ensure GVR receives value for the money spent. This policy 
establishes the approved parameters to be used for all contracts, 
purchases, leases, orders of goods, supplies, construction, professional 
services, and other contractual services. These requirements are based 
on the principles of accountability, transparency, openness, fairness, 
integrity, and ensuring value. This policy is consistent with CPM 5.1.3, 
as to setting financial limits established by the Board.

The policy applies to all staff/employees of GVR who have responsibility 
for procuring goods and services. The CEO and CFO are authorized to 
develop internal operational procedures to further implement this policy 
for the applicable Departments, Directors, Managers and staff to follow. 

Definitions: 

1. Request for Proposals (RFP): A request for proposals (RFP) is a
“competitive negotiations method” of soliciting proposals. This
method is used when the end-product is unique, the customer knows
what they want, but the methods and specifications aren’t readily
available. Thus, price isn’t the only deciding factor. Quality and
experience will be heavily weighed.

2. Bid: An Invitation to Bid provides standardized information to all
bidders. This is achieved through the use of sealed bidding
procedures. Contractors will submit their price in sealed envelopes.
The contract will generally be awarded to the lowest bidder.

3. Quote: A quote is a figure generally obtained from a supplier for the
price of materials needed for a job. Quotes are often only good for a
certain period of time.

4. Sole Source: A Sole Source purchase means that only one supplier,
to the best of the requester's knowledge and belief, based upon
thorough research, is capable of providing the required product or
service, during the necessary time period.

Attachment 1

6



5.4.2. Bidding and Disbursement Process:

All Department managers and staff are responsible for ensuring that 
goods and services are procured for good value, and that a fair 
procurement process is used to select vendors. The CEO and CFO have 
the overall responsibility for the administrative procurement process, 
overseen by the Board as set forth herein. Artificial division, splitting, or 
fragmentation of a transaction/purchase order to circumvent 
requirements of source selection or bidding is prohibited. 

Internal operational procedures may include processes relating to 
purchasing recurring items and executing recurring operational 
contracts. This policy shall serve as the Board’s resolution under Article 
VII, Section 4.A of the Bylaws, exempting such recurring contracts from 
certain bidding requirements, and not requiring signature by the 
President.

The procurement levels in the policy below do not relieve staff of the 
responsibility to ensure that they comply with the Board-approved 
budgetary limits. The CEO retains the authority under CPM 4.1.2.A.2 
and under the CPM Appendix 1 - Budget Development Policy 1.1.3.C 
and D to manage expenditures within the approved budget without 
incurring indebtedness, but with the ability to shift amounts between 
line items to meet current or anticipated needs (subject to reporting to 
the Board any increase or decrease by more than 15% or $15,000.00, 
whichever is greater).  

The Board-authorized bidding and purchase approval requirements, as 
well as signing authority for all purchases is outlined in the chart below, 
except as shown below the chart in 5.4.3:

AMOUNT OF 
PURCHASE 

BIDDING 
REQUIREMENT 

PURCHASE 
APPROVAL/SIGNATURE 

Under $5,000  None Required.  
Authorized Department 

Director or 
Manager/Supervisor  

$5,000 to 
$99,999 

Quotes/Bids required. 
No posting on GVR 
website required. 

Scope of Work 
developed by staff and 
sent to vendors with 

the goal of receiving at 
least 3 responses.   

CEO or CFO Approves. 

CEO Signs Contract. 

7



$100,000+ 

Sealed Bidding Process. 
Open to all vendors 

that choose to submit a 
response to an 

Invitation to Bid or an 
RFP developed by staff.  
Invitation to Bid/RFP is 
posted on GVR Website 

and other relevant 
websites. Staff and 

CEO review submittals 
and make 

recommendations. All 
bids/proposals received 

are posted on the 
Board-secured website. 

Board Approves. 

President Signs Contract. 

5.4.3. Exceptions to Bidding and/or Approval Process:

Recurring monthly and annual bills, e.g. property taxes, employee 
health, routine maintenance, and life insurance, etc., are exempt from 
the purchase order and bidding requirement. The CFO or the CEO may 
approve these regularly occurring bills and contracts. Board approval is 
not required unless over $100,000.00. Recurring operational contracts 
giving rise to these types of expenditures do not require signature by 
the President (i.e., the first two categories above). 

Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Funds (Section 3 of CPM 
Part 5: 

 (MRR-A) CPM 5.3.3. (Fund for maintenance, repair,
replacement of existing equipment and facilities in
Component List of Annual Reserve Study). The CEO or CFO
approve any purchases and contracts, and the CEO signs, for
any amounts, consistent with 5.3.3.D, authorizing spending
up to 110% of a Component’s Fully Funded Balance for the
current fiscal year in the current Annual Reserve Study.
Board approval is required only for more than 110%. The
bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart
above.

 (MRR-B) CPM 5.3.4. (Fund for replacement of pools and
spas). All expenditures of money from this fund and
therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be approved by the

8



Board, and the President shall sign contracts. The bidding 
process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above. 

Initiatives Reserve Fund. CPM 5.3.5.  All expenditures of money 
from this fund and therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be 
approved by the Board, and the President shall sign contracts. The 
bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above. 

5.4.4. The requirement for obtaining bids is waived in the following 
cases:

• Sole Source: $100,000 or greater when approved by the Board.
• Emergency procurement/repair of any amount, whether budgeted

or unbudgeted, if approved by the CEO (or CFO or other senior
management in the CFO’s absence). The CEO may use funds from the
Emergency Reserve Fund for emergencies over $25,000 (CPM 5.3.6.D).

5.4.5. Lease or Rental Agreement:

The CFO and CEO must approve any lease or rental agreement 
exceeding six (6) months in duration and with an aggregate annual 
payment exceeding $5,000.00. The Board must approve all such 
agreements that exceed $100,000, or one year in length. 

5.4.6. Vendor Relationships:

Gifts exceeding $50.00 in value, from a vendor or prospective vendor 
of goods and services for the Corporation, given to any employee(s) are 
strictly prohibited. 

9



02-18-2023 Final Draft 

PROPOSED NEW SECTION 4 to PART 5: FISCAL/ACCOUNTING 

SECTION 4 – PROCUREMENT POLICY (Adopted _______________) 

5.4.1  Overview

The purpose of this policy is to set out the requirements and guidelines 

for procuring goods and services for GVR on behalf of the Corporation 
to ensure GVR receives value for the money spent.  This policy 

establishes the approved parameters to be used for all contracts, 
purchases, leases, orders of goods, supplies, construction, professional 

services, and other contractual services.  These requirements are based 
on the principles of accountability, transparency, openness, fairness, 

integrity, and ensuring value.  This policy is consistent with CPM 5.1.3, 

as to setting financial limits established by the Board.

The policy applies to all staff/employees of GVR who have responsibility 

for procuring goods and services.  The CEO and CFO are authorized to 
develop internal operational procedures to further implement this policy 

for the applicable Departments, Directors, Managers and staff to follow. 

Definitions: 

1. Request for Proposals (RFP): A request for proposals (RFP) is a
“competitive negotiations method” of soliciting proposals. This 

method is used when the end-product is unique, the customer knows 

what they want, but the methods and specifications aren’t 
readily available. Thus, price isn’t the only deciding factor. Quality 

and experience will be heavily weighed. 
2. Bid: An Invitation to Bid provides standardized information to all

bidders. This is achieved through the use of sealed bidding 
procedures. Contractors will submit their price in sealed envelopes. 

The contract will generally be awarded to the lowest bidder. 
3. Quote: A quote is a figure generally obtained from a supplier for the

price of materials needed for a job. Quotes are often only good for a 
certain period of time 

4. Sole Source: A Sole Source purchase means that only one supplier,
to the best of the requester's knowledge and belief, based upon 

thorough research, is capable of providing the required product or 
service, during the necessary time period. 

5.4.2. Bidding and Disbursement Process:

All Department managers and staff are responsible for ensuring that 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),

Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Space After:  18.75 pt, Pattern: Clear

(Custom Color(RGB(243,244,246)))

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(85,85,85))

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 12 pt, Font color:

Dark Gray

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.42" + Indent at:  0.67"

Attachment 2

10



02-18-2023 Final Draft 

goods and services are procured for good value, and that a fair 
procurement process is used to select vendors.  The CEO and CFO have 

the overall responsibility for the administrative procurement process, 
overseen by the Board as set forth herein.  Artificial division, splitting, 

or fragmentation of a transaction/purchase order to circumvent 
requirements of source selection or bidding is prohibited. 

Internal operational procedures may include processes relating to 
purchasing recurring items and executing recurring operational 

contracts. This policy shall serve as the Board’s resolution under Article 
VII, Section 4.A of the Bylaws, exempting such recurring contracts from 

certain bidding requirements, and not requiring signature by the 
President.

The procurement levels in the policy below do not relieve staff of the 

responsibility to ensure that they comply with the Board-approved 
budgetary limits.  The CEO retains the authority under CPM 4.1.2.A.2 

and under the CPM Appendix 1 - Board Budget Development Policy 
1.1.3.C and D to manage expenditures within the approved budget 

without incurring indebtedness, but with the ability to shift amounts 
between line items to meet current or anticipated needs (subject to 

reporting to the Board any increase or decrease by more than 15% or 
$15,000.00, whichever is greater).  

The Board-authorized bidding and purchase approval requirements, as 

well as signing authority for all purchases is outlined in the chart below, 

except as shown below the chart in 5.4.3:

AMOUNT OF 
PURCHASE 

BIDDING 
REQUIREMENT 

PURCHASE 
APPROVAL/SIGNATURE 

Under $5,000 
Not None Required  

Authorized Department 

Director or 
Manager/Supervisor 

$5,000 to 

$99,999 

Quotes/Bids required. 

No posting on GVR 
website required. RFP 

and/or Scope of Work 
developed by staff and 

, sent to vendors with 
the goal of receiving at 

least 3 responses 
vendors.   

CEO or CFO Approves. 

CEO Signs Contract. 

11



02-18-2023 Final Draft 

$100,000+ 

Sealed Bidding Process. 
Open to all vendors 

that choose to submit a 
response to an 

Invitation to Bid or an 
RFP developed by staff.  

Invitation to Bid/RFP is 

Pposted on GVR 
Website and other 

relevant websites.  
Staff and CEO review 

submittals and make 
recommendations. All 

bids/proposals received 
are posted on the 

Board-secured website. 

Board Approves. 

President Signs Contract. 

5.4.3. Exceptions to Bidding and/or Approval Process:

Recurring monthly and annual bills, e.g. property taxes, employee 

health, routine maintenance, and life insurance, etc., are exempt from 
the purchase order and bidding requirement.  The CFO or the CEO may 

approve these regularly occurring bills and contracts.  Board approval is 
not required unless over $100,000.00.  Recurring operational contracts 

giving rise to these types of expenditures do not require signature by 

the President (i.e., the first two categories above). 

Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Funds (Section 3 of CPM 

Part 5: 
◼ (MRR-A) CPM 5.3.3. (Fund for maintenance, repair,

replacement of existing equipment and facilities in
Component List of Annual Reserve Study).  The CEO or CFO

approve any purchases and contracts, and the CEO signs, for
any amounts, consistent with 5.3.3.D, authorizing spending

up to 110% of a Component’s Fully Funded Balance for the
current fiscal year in the current Annual Reserve Study.

Board approval is required only for more than 110%.  The
bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart

above.
◼ (MRR-B) CPM 5.3.4. (Fund for replacement of pools and

spas).  All expenditures of money from this fund and

therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be approved by the

12



02-18-2023 Final Draft 

Board, and the President shall sign contracts.  The bidding 
process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above. 

◼

◼ Initiatives Reserve Fund. CPM 5.3.5.  All expenditures of money 

from this fund and therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be 
approved by the Board, and the President shall sign contracts.  The 

bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above. 

5.4.4.  The requirement for obtaining bids is waived in the following 
cases:

• Sole Source/Direct Award, $100,000 or greater if approved in

advancewhen approved by the CEO and the Board.
• Emergency procurement/repair of any amount, whether budgeted

or unbudgeted, if approved by the CEO (or CFO or other senior

management in the CFO’s absence).  The CEO may use funds from the
Emergency Reserve Fund for emergencies over $25,000 (CPM 5.3.6.D).

5.4.54. Lease or Rental Agreement:

The CFO and CEO must approve any lease or rental agreement 
exceeding six (6) months in duration and with an aggregate annual 

payment exceeding $5,000.00. The Board must approve all such 
agreements that exceed $100,000, or one year in length. 

5.4.65. Vendor Relationships:

Gifts exceeding $50.00 in value, from a vendor or prospective vendor 

of goods and services for the Corporation, given to any employee(s) are 

strictly prohibited. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 12 pt, Font color:

Dark Gray

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 12 pt, Font color:

Dark Gray

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 12 pt, Font color:

Dark Gray

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 12 pt, Font color:

Dark Gray

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Not Italic

13



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board Affairs Committee 

Adopted Board Credo 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 14, 2023 

Presented By: Donna Coon, Chair 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Decide where the Board Credo should be placed. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Board Credo was approved at the Board of Directors Meeting on February 
22, 2023. At the Board meeting it was asked where this Credo would be place. 
Possibilities are the CPM, on the Board Agenda each meeting, framed and hung 
on a wall. The Board directed the BAC to decide on the appropriate placement 
of the Credo. 

Committee Options: 
1) Approve Committee decision and have staff fulfil the placement.
2) Hold further discussion at a future BAC meeting.

Staff Recommendation: 
#1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the Committee decision on the placement of the Board Credo 
and have staff complete the process. 

Attachments: 
1) Board Credo

Agenda Topic 4.b.

14





Green Valley Recreation Board Credo 

Our purpose is to serve the best interests of our current and future members through 
responsible and effective governance of GVR.  We represent ALL members and seek to ensure 
that all community interests are understood and considered in our decision making. 

As individually elected board members we commit to our members: 
• To show up, prepared, and be thoughtfully engaged for each meeting;
• To listen with an open mind and a desire to understand different ideas and

perspectives;
• To learn and develop our individual and collective capacity to make good governance

decisions;
• To seek input, consider data, utilize expertise and engage our professional staff in

informing our decision-making;
• To be transparent about our processes and decisions.
• We commit to abide by the current GVR governing documents.

We personally strive to: 
• Practice humility and self-awareness
• Learn from the past but focus on the future
• Listen with the intent to understand each other better
• Choose our own battles judiciously
• Support the decisions made by the group and be willing to disagree without

undermining the credibility of GVR and the board
• Tackle the hard issues
• Show gratitude and respect to each other, as well as GVR members and staff

We are neighbors, working together to make our community a great place to live, play and 
learn. 

Attachment 1

15





Date: February 6, 2023 
To: Natalie Whitman, Chief Operations Officer 
From: Kathy Edwards, GVR Club Liaison 
Subj: Application for GVR Italian Club - Overview 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Benefit to GVR Membership 
The purpose of the GVR Italian club will be to educate members who wish to learn about 
Italian culture, cooking and country.  It is not limited to those of Italian descent, rather it 
will provide social gatherings for all GVR members who are interested. 

Space Requirements 
Meeting room only 

Club Membership (minimum 35 to form a club) 
There are currently 40 GVR members on the membership roster which have been verified 
by GVR staff. 

Club Officers  
Mike Caprio, President 
Paul Zelus, Vice President 
Jerry Deno, Secretary 
Laurel Caprio, Treasurer 

GVR Approval 
Approved by GVR Chief Operations Officer 
Signed by the GVR Chief Executive Officer February 2, 2023 

GVR Board Affairs Committee 
Please advise when this will be on the agenda for the GVR Board Affairs Committee and club 
representatives will be present to answer any questions. 

Agenda Topic 4.c.

16





Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
New GVR Club 

Application for Club Status 
Please read the FAQ and Application Instructions prior to completing this application 

This application and supporting documents must be completed in their entirety. Partial applications 
cannot be processed. Attach additional sheets if necessary. If you have questions, please contact the 
GVR Club Liaison. 

1. Proposed name of your club: The GVR Club Italian Club.

2. Have your interested members read the GVR Bylaws, and Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) posted
on the GVR Website, including Part 6: GVR Programs and Clubs? YES   X      NO___

3. You must have a minimum of thirty-five (35) GVR members to apply for "Club Status." Does your
group have thirty-five (35) or more interested GVR members? YES   X      NO___

4. Is the mission of your group consistent with GVR's mission: "To provide excellent facilities and
services that create opportunities for recreation, social activities, and leisure education to enhance
the quality of our members' lives? YES   X      NO___

Please explain below:  This will be a club to educate and learn of Italian culture, cooking, and
country, and not only for members of Italian descent.

5. How will this club benefit GVR and the membership? It will provide a venue for like-minded
members.

6. Please describe, in detail, the purpose, plan and charge of your group.

7. Why is your group seeking GVR "Club Status?" Check all that apply:

___ High interest in activity ___Tax purposes 
___ Better operation of group ___ Insurance 
 X   Facility Space  ___ Storage 
 X   Reservation Preference ___ Need for dues 
___ GVR support  ___ Other________________________ 

8. Does your group understand that facility reservations are not guaranteed and your meeting space
may vary from year to year? YES   X      NO___ 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37





Year-End Report 

2022-2023 
Board Affairs Committee

Chair: Donna Coon  
Staff Liaison: Nanci Moyo 
Committee Members: Carol Crothers, Joyce Finkelstein, Jerry Humphrey, Nellie 
Johnson, Ed Knop, Chuck Soukup, Beverly Tobiason, Jodie Walker, Tony Zabicki 

Priorities Established for 2022-2023: 

• Complete conversion of the CPM reorganization to new structure which was
approved at the 12-15-2021 Board meeting.

• Created a ‘Bylaws’ work group to decide on whether or not to pursue getting
voter approval for the updated bylaws.  Work group Chair – Chuck Soukup

• Created a ‘Committee Continuity’ work group to research best practices for
nonprofit boards in establishing and using board standing committees.  Work
group Chair – Nellie Johnson

• Determine procedure for hiring new corporate attorneys.

Specific Committee Requests: 
• Approved creation of GVR Canine Club - Approved (BAC – 8/9/2022, BOD –

8/24/2022)
• Approved creation of GVR Martial Arts Club (BAC – 6/14/2022, BOD –

7/13/2022)
• Approved creation of Italian Club (BAC – 3/14/2023, BOD – 3/22/2023)

Standing Committee Requests: 
• Nominations & Elections requested a change to Part 3 Committees

(3.6.2.A.2) - to shorten the number of days before the election that
candidate applications were due from 120 days to 90 days. Approved (BAC –
7/12/2022, BOD – 9/28/2022).

• Fiscal Affairs requested a change to Part 5 Fiscal/Accounting to add Section
4, Procurement Policy. Approved (BAC – 3/15/2023?,  BOD – 3/22/2023?)

Recommendations from Staff: 

Agenda Topic 4.d.

38



• 1.2.2. Guest Card – changed from ‘unlimited’ guests to 4 guests per daily 
guest card and annual guest card. (BAC approved – 10/11/2022, BOD 
approved – 10/26/2022) 

• 6.3.4.A&B -  Hobby Shops & Studio Clubs – Changed to allow sales to the 
public. Approved (BAC – 12/13/2022, BOD – 1/25/2023) 

• 6.2.2.K.5 Membership/Guest/Monitoring – Changed to “Non-members will 
pay an event fee of no more than one half of the daily guest fee approved by 
the Board. Staff will work with the Clubs to establish the event fee if 
requested.” Approved (BAC – 2/14/2023, BOD – 3/22/2023?) 

 
Additional Tasks: 

• Corporate Policy Manual Changes: 
 The Board Resolutions was pulled out of the CPM and is now 

standalone on the website under the Governance tab. (May, 2022) 
 A new feature has been added to the back of the CPM called ‘CPM 

Reorganization Tracking’. 
 CPM Part 2 Board of Directors - Approved (BAC – 8/9/2022, BOD – 

9/28/2022) 
 CPM Part 4 Chief Executive Officer – Approved (BAC – 11/8/2022, BOD 

– 11/16/2022) 
 CPM Part 3 Committees, Section 1 – Approved (BAC – 2/14/2023, BOD 

– 2/22/2023) 
 CPM Part 7 Communication – Approved (BAC – 2/14/2023, BOD – 

3/22/2023?) 
• Bylaws Updates: 

 At the 11/8/2022 BAC meeting the Bylaws work group recommended 
to not pursue putting the Restated Bylaws on the 2023 ballot and the 
BAC approved this recommendation. GVR has retained new legal 
counsel in 2022 and BAC has asked staff to work with the new 
attorney to make recommendations on future changes to the existing 
bylaws. 

 
Task for Next Year: 

• CPM Part 3 Committees – work with each standing committee to update their 
Duties and Responsibilities (Section 2 thru 7). 

• Coordinate with staff and other standing committees on developing CPM 
policy for major capital project planning and decision making. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39


	Board Affairs Committee
	Agenda Topic
	BAC 02142023 Minutes Draft.pdf
	Board Affairs Committee

	GVR Italian Club Application Package - BAC - Final 02.13.2023.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



